

# HOPATCONG BOARD OF EDUCATION

## The Chalkboard

Mr. Paul J. Saxton, Superintendent of Schools

Budget Hearing -  
May 7, 2018  
7:00 P.M.  
(Rescheduled from  
4/30)

The Hopatcong Borough Schools Board of Education at its public meeting on May 7, 2018 approved the resolutions as follows:

### I. Finance

■

#### Adoption of the 2018/2019 Budget

The Board approved the following resolution for submission of the 2018/2019 school budget to the County Superintendent:

“**WHEREAS**, the Superintendent has presented to the Finance Committee and other members of the Hopatcong Board of Education a revised budget due to an increase in state aid, called Emergency Aid, in the amount of \$58,971, and has recommended the 2018/2019 School District Budget in the total amount of \$37,729,146, as follows; and

**WHEREAS**, the Board approved a Local Tax Levy of \$24,147,386;

**THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED** the Hopatcong School District’s 2018/2019 budget is as follows:”

#### General Fund

Fund 10 – Charter School Tuition.....  
Fund 11 – General Operating Fund.....  
Fund 12 – Debt Services Assessment.....

#### Budget

\$ 303,696  
\$36,738,901  
\$ 1,614  
\$37,044,211

**Special Revenue Fund**

Fund 20 – Federal/State Grants..... \$ 684,935

**Debt Service -** ..... \$ 0

**Total Budget** ..... \$37,729,146

- The Hopatcong Board of Education approved to close the Day Plus program that it currently administers; and

**WHEREAS**, for reasons of economy and of change in the administrative or supervisory organization of the Hopatcong School District, the Board finds it advisable to implement a reduction in force;

**NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED**, that the Board approved the closure of the existing Day Plus program as of June 30, 2018; and

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED**, by the Hopatcong Board of Education that, upon recommendation of the Superintendent, the following positions have been abolished as a result of a reduction in force:

1. Day Plus Program Instructor
2. Day Plus Program Lead Instructor
3. Day Plus Program Student Instructor

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED**, that the Board authorizes the Board Secretary and/or Superintendent to notify all affected employees of their employment status and all affected parents of the status of the district-operated Day Plus program.

- The Board approved to enter into a lease with AlphaBEST Education, Inc. (“AlphaBEST”), which will independently administer a before and after school care program in each of the district’s elementary schools;

**NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED**, by the Hopatcong Board of Education that, the Board hereby approved the lease with AlphaBEST to begin July 1, 2018.

- The Board approved for authorization to initiate a Request for Proposals for a Food Service Management Company.



- The Board approved the Cell Tower Lease (Gaelic Communications) to include a third party (SBA Towers IX, LLC) to take assignment of the ground lease.
- The Board approved for the 2018-19 school year signing of the Cigna medical rates from Brown & Brown Insurance.
- The Board approved the payment of architectural services for three schools by Gianforcaro Architects in the amount of \$11,230 for three makerspace projects.
- The Board approved the High School Decathlon team to participate in the National Tournament in Orlando, FL.

## II. **Personnel**

- The Board accepted of the resignation, with regret, of Janet Autorino from her position as Learning Disabilities Teacher Consultant at Hopatcong High School, for the purpose of retirement, effective July 1, 2018.
- The Board accepted of the resignation, with regret, of Dawn Valle-Campo from her position as Speech in the Hopatcong School District, for the purpose of retirement, effective July 1, 2018.
- The Board accepted of the resignation, with regret, of Charles Hildebrant from his position as Custodian at Durban Avenue School, for the purpose of retirement, effective July 1, 2018.
- The Board accepted the resignation, with regret, of Andrew S. Neigel from his position as Lead Custodian at the Hopatcong Middle School, for the purpose of retirement, effective July 1, 2018.
- The Board accepted the resignation, with regret, of Nancy Pascarella from her position as School Nurse at the Hudson Maxim School, for the purpose of retirement, effective January 1, 2018, pending the approval of retirement application by the State of New Jersey.
- The Board accepted the resignation of Richard Sanchez from his position as Part Time Custodian for the Hopatcong School District, effective April 2, 2018.
- The Board accepted the resignation of Emily Kramer from her position as Payroll/Benefits Coordinator for the Hopatcong School District, effective March 30, 2018.
- The Board approved the request of Jill Mortenson for a Maternity Leave of Absence from her position as a Physical Education Teacher of 35 Sick Days during the period of September 4, 2018 to October 22, 2018, followed by New Jersey Family Leave of Absence/Federal

Leave of Absence for the period of October 23, 2018 to June 30, 2019.

- The Board approved the employment of Katie Schwab as Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent, at a salary of \$45,000, effective May 1, 2018.
- The Board approved the employment of Sandra Renzetti as Payroll/Benefits Coordinator, at a salary of \$68,000, effective May 1, 2018.
- The Board approved the employment of Andrew B. Neigel as a part time Custodian at a salary of \$19,219 based upon the 2017/2018 Salary Guide Step 1, with \$200 salary increase for Black Seal License, when attained, effective May 1, 2018.
- The Board approved the employment of Lisa Schuffenhauer and Michael Moschella as instructors for the Safety Town program at Hudson Maxim School, for 4.5 hours per day for 8 days, during the period of July 16-26, 2018, at a salary of \$25.00 per hour.
- The Board approved of the following Spring 2017-2018 Athletic Coaches for the Hopatcong High School:

Name	Nature of Action	Position	Class	Level	Salary	Date Effective	Date Terminated
Ray Annett	Resign	Asst. Baseball Coach	A	2	\$3,666.00	3/1/2018	6/30/2018
Dominic Spukes	Appoint	Asst. Baseball Coach	A	3	\$4,388.00	3/1/2018	6/30/2018

- The Board approved the following Education students to conduct a field experience in the Hopatcong School District during the 2017-2018 school year:

Student Name	School Year	University	Experience	School	Cooperating Staff Member
Connor Merrill	2018-2019	Farleigh Dickinson University	Student Teaching	High School	Mr. Landshof
Marlene Lupo	2017-2018	Grand Canyon University	Observation	Tulsa Trail	
Cassidy Rain Dube	2017-2018	Felician University	Field Placement	Tulsa Trail	Mrs. Ibaceta
Nathalia Bueno	2018-2019	William Paterson University	Student Teaching	Elementary	TBD
Student Name	School Year	University	Experience	School	Cooperating Staff Member
Austin Caldwell	2018-2019	William Paterson University	Student Teaching	Elementary	TBD



- The Board approved substitute teachers, paraprofessionals, custodians and van drivers. (attachment 1)

### III. **Students & Services**

- The Board approved field trip requests, as required by the New Jersey Department of Education. (attachment 2)

### IV. **Travel**

- The Board approved travel costs as related in this resolution, which are educationally necessary and fiscally prudent and are related to and within the scope of the employee's current responsibilities and promotes the delivery of instruction or furthers the efficient operation of the school district. The reimbursements listed in this resolution are in compliance with the state travel reimbursement guidelines as established by the Department of the Treasury and Board of Education policy in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23B-1.1. seq. (attachment 3)

### V. **Policies & Regulations**

- The Board approved the modifications and additions to the policies and regulations of the Hopatcong Board of Education in accordance with statutory and regulatory changes for approval, as revised, for **FIRST READING:**

<u>Policy #</u>	<u>Title</u>
P 3437	Military Leave (Revised, Recommended)
P 4437	Military Leave (Revised, Recommended)
P 7425	Lead Testing of Water in Schools (Recommended, New)

<u>Regulation #</u>	<u>Title</u>
None	

(attachment 4)

- The Board approved the modifications and additions to the policies and regulations of the Hopatcong Board of Education in accordance with statutory and regulatory changes for approval, as revised, for **SECOND READING:**

<u>Policy #</u>	<u>Title</u>
P 7440	School District Security (Mandated, Revised)
P 7441	Electronic Surveillance in School Buildings and on School Grounds (Mandated, Revised)

**Regulation #****Title**

R 7440

School District Security (Mandated, Revised)

R 7441

Electronic Surveillance in School Buildings and on  
School Grounds (Mandated, Revised)**VI. Calendar**

- The Board approved the Revised 180 day School Calendar for the 2017/2018 school year due to weather related closings. (attachment 5)

# LIST OF APPROVED SUBSTITUTES

DISTRICT: Hopatcong

COUNTY: Sussex

Date adopted by Local Board of Education Subject to Criminal Background Check May 7, 2018

NAME	INSTITUTIONS ATTENDED	DATES OF ATTENDANCE	DEGREE RECEIVED	MAJOR	CERTIFICATE(S)
Emily Wisneski	Ramapo College	2014-2018	BA	History	County Sub Cert
SUBSTITUTE AIDES	SUBSTITUTE CUSTODIANS/ MECHANIC	SUBSTITUTE VAN/BUS DRIVERS	SUBSTITUTE School Nurse	SUBSTITUTE DAY PLUS Thomas J Ward	HOME INSTRUCTION Kim Loftis Diana Menzel Anna Beth Prescott

Attachment 1

# Attachment 2

Field Trips April 2018 Board Meeting Submitted by			Activity Title	Date	Cost per student
Hill, Susan	Sussex County Middle School Academic Bowl - Hardyston Middle School	5/30/2018			\$0.00
Hill, Susan	NJFEA Middle School Conference - Kean University	6/5/2018			\$0.00
Olsen, Kenneth	Walking Tour of Lower Manhattan	5/23/2018			\$36.00
Olsen, Kenneth	911 Museum - NYC	5/17/2018			\$50.25
McConnell, Ally...	4th Grade Shop Rite Trip - Byram	5/31/2018			\$3.25
McConnell, Ally...	4th Grade Shop Rite Trip - Byram	5/30/2018			\$3.25
Guevara, Yanet	Museo del Barrio.( Tour Around the Block) - 1230 5th Ave New York, NY 10029	4/27/2018			\$25.00
Delorenzo, Maria	Madagascar Play - Growing Stage Theater, 7 Ledgewood Avenue, Netcong, NJ 07857	5/2/2018			\$13.00
DeRosa, Christine	Lake Hopatcong Historical Society Archaeological Dig - State Park, Landing, New Jersey 07850	5/15/2018			\$0.00
Olsen, Kenneth	Deep Sea Fishing - Belmar Marina, 905 Hwy 35, Belmar, NJ 07719	5/31/2018			\$25.00
Wilson, Julie	Breakfast Bunch - Roses Luncheonette, Netcong	5/3/2018			\$5.00
Wilson, Julie	SWAP Bowling - Sparta Lanes	5/9/2018			\$10.00
Catizone, Carmela	George Washington's Crossing - Washington's Crossing, PA	6/11/2018			\$14.00
Wilson, Julie	Movie Mania - 1965 NJ 57 Hackettstown NJ Dorney Park Trip - 3830 Dorney Park RD,	4/27/2018			\$10.00
Pierson, David	Allentown PA 18104	5/30/2018			\$45.85
Wilson, Julie	SWAP Movie - Cinopolis Mansfield	5/17/2018			\$10.00
Miller, Ashley	Skyzone Field Trip - 61 International Drive South Unit ANCB Unit ANCB, Mt Olive Township, NJ 07828	5/15/2018			\$13.00
Pierson, Dave	FIT Sandy Hook/ American Littoral Society, Sandy Hook	6/13/2018			\$29.83



# Attachment 3

## Conferences

### April 2018 Board Meeting

Submitted by	Activity Title	Date	Cost
Dinnocenzo, Mary	Observation@Goddard	2/22/2018	\$8.37
Dinnocenzo, Mary	Observation@Goddard	2/22/2018	\$8.37
Kester, Kristine	Speech Retreat	8/2/2018	\$259.76
Mullane, Joanne	NJ Professional Development Schools Conference	5/24/2018	\$23.43
Miller, Tammy	Living a Mindful Life	4/4/2018	\$9.92
Wilcock, Mary A...	SEMI regional meeting	4/9/2018	\$15.69
Buglovsky, Chri...	HWS AD Meeting	3/7/2018	\$24.80
Rodick, Kelly	4 Math Problems Worth Solving that Students Will Love	3/21/2018	\$0.00
Rodick, Kelly	Guiding Readers By Interest, Not Level Strategies and Structures for Teaching	1/31/2018	\$0.00
Stauffer, Dorot...	Reading and Writing Arts Integration- Who, What, Where, When, Why, and How?	3/8/2018	\$225.86
Stauffer, Dorot...	When, Why, and How?	1/12/2018	\$182.29
Harris, Blair	Conscious Classroom Management	8/16/2017	\$0.00
Bitetto, Joseph	Conquering Math LLC	3/28/2018	\$0.00
Kennedy, Melissa	School Support Network Meeting - Spotlight School	4/11/2018	\$16.12
Mullane, Joanne	Sussex County Human Services Forum	3/29/2018	\$0.00
Tillson, Jacque...	Monthly SAC Meeting	4/13/2018	\$0.00
Saxton, Paul	NJASA/NJAPSA Spring Leadership Conference	05/16/2018 - 05/18/2018	\$842.38
Schuffenhauer, ...	Positive Discipline	05/07/2018 - 05/08/2018	\$403.99
Walker, Jaime	Legal One HIB Update	4/10/2018	\$182.86
Walker, Jaime	United Way--School Support Network	4/11/2018	\$15.50
Edgerton, Olga	Politics, Ethics, and School Law: A Survival Guide for School Leaders	4/12/2018	\$0.00
Binoatto, Emil	politics, ethics and school law	4/12/2018	\$0.00

Mullane, Joanne	NJSSC Session	4/19/2018	\$20.33
	Sussex County School Counselors		
Kennedy, Melissa	Association End of the Year Meeting	5/31/2018	\$9.30
Anthes, Leticia	Intake at OOD school	4/17/2018	\$19.47
Joseph, Carolyn	2018 Annual Spring NJASBO Conference	06/05/2018 - 06/07/2018	\$317.00
Pallotta, Susan	OOD IEP mtg DN	4/12/2018	\$10.72
Mullane, Joanne	Superintendent's Roundtable	5/11/2018	\$0.00
Mullane, Joanne	Panasonic Meeting/Workshop	6/7/2018	\$40.36
Blazier, Linda	Making Repertoire Come Alive	10/8/2018	\$90.00
Miller, Tammy	Response to Intervention	6/6/2018	\$29.76
	Community-Based Instruction Program		
LaRosa, Kathleen	Showcase 2017-2018	4/27/2018	\$15.50
	Community Based Instruction Program		
Anthes, Leticia	Showcase	4/27/2018	\$9.92
Miller, Ashley	MD workshop	5/17/2018	\$0.00
Noonan, Mary	Developing Thoughtful Writers	4/24/2018	\$0.00
	Literacy Workshop Developing Thoughtful		
Mortello, Yvonne	Writers	4/24/2018	\$26.04
Doolittle, Kenn...	Developing Thoughtful Writers	4/24/2018	\$0.00
Juskus, Michael	Indoor track and field event	2/10/18, 2/24/18	\$220.90
Colonna, Kelly	Developing Thoughtful Writers	4/24/2018	\$128.04
	Dual Capacity Building Framework for		
McFadden, Kathe...	Family-School Partnerships	5/10/2018	\$47.12
		total	\$3,203.80

# POLICY GUIDE

TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS

3437/page 1 of 2

Military Leave

Dec 17

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 164 and 214]

## 3437 MILITARY LEAVE

The Board of Education recognizes that military service rendered by any district employee in the defense of the country or in maintaining preparedness for conflict, foreign or domestic, is a service benefiting all citizens. A ~~Any~~ permanent or full-time **temporary** officer and/or employee of the district will be provided military leave and related benefits pursuant to the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), 38 U.S.C. Section 4301 et seq., P.L. 2001 Chapter 351 amending N.J.S.A. 38:23-1, N.J.S.A. 38A:1-1 and N.J.S.A. 38A:4-4., and any other applicable Federal and State laws.

A permanent or full-time temporary officer or employee of the school district who is a member of the organized militia of New Jersey (New Jersey National Guard, New Jersey Naval Militia Joint Command) shall be entitled, in addition to pay received, if any, **as a member of the organized militia**, to a leave of absence **from his or her respective duties** without loss of pay or time on all days **during** in which ~~he/she~~ **he or she shall be** is engaged in any period of State or Federal active duty; **provided, however, that** ~~t~~The leave of absence for Federal active duty or active duty for training shall not exceed ninety work days in the aggregate in any calendar year. **Any leave of absence for such duty in excess of ninety work days shall be without pay, but without loss of time. Such leave shall be in addition to the regular vacation or other accrued leave provided to the officer or employee.** A permanent or full-time temporary officer or employee who has served **under such temporary appointment** for less than one year in the district shall receive this leave without pay, but without loss of time. ~~This paid leave shall be in addition to the regular vacation or other accrued leave provided to the officer or employee.~~ **Any leave of absence for such duty in excess of ninety workdays shall be without pay, but without loss of time.**

A permanent or full-time temporary officer or employee of the school district who is a member of the organized reserve of the Army of the United States, United States Naval Reserve, United States Air Force Reserve, or United States Marine Corps Reserve, or other organization affiliated therewith, including the National Guard of other states, shall be entitled, in addition to pay received, if any, **as a member of a reserve component of the Armed Forces of the United States**, to a leave of absence **from his or her respective duty** without loss of pay or time on





# POLICY GUIDE

## TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS

3437/page 2 of 2

### Military Leave

all work days ~~he/she~~ **on which he or she** shall be engaged in any period of **Federal** active duty, provided, **however, that** such leave of absence shall not exceed thirty work days in any calendar year. **Such leave shall be in addition to the regular vacation or other accrued leave provided to the officer or employee. Any leave of absence for such duty in excess of thirty work days shall be without pay, but without loss of time.** A permanent ~~or~~ full-time temporary officer or employee who has served **under such temporary appointment for** less than one year in the district shall receive this leave without pay, but without loss of time. ~~This paid leave shall be in addition to the regular vacation or other accrued leave provided to the officer or employee. Any leave of absence for such duty in excess of thirty workdays shall be without pay, but without loss of time.~~

Military leave with pay is not authorized for Inactive Duty Training (IDT) as defined in N.J.A.C. 5A:2-2.1.

The district will provide benefits and rights for staff on military leave as required by Federal and State laws.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:13H-2.1, in accordance with the provisions of Article VIII, Section II, paragraph 5 of the New Jersey Constitution, upon application by the district to the State Treasury and approval of the application by the Director of the Division of Budget and Accounting, reimbursement shall be made by the State of New Jersey for any costs incurred as a result of the provisions of P.L. 2001, Chapter 351.

N.J.S.A. 18A:6-33; 18A:28-11.1; 18A:29-11; 18A:66-8.1

N.J.S.A. 38:23-1 et seq.; 38A:1-1; 38A:4-4; 52:13H-2.1;

N.J.A.C. 5A:2-2.1

Uniformed Services Employment and ~~R~~eemployment Rights Act (USERRA), 38 U.S.C. Section 4301 et seq.

Adopted:



# POLICY GUIDE

SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS

4437/page 1 of 2

Military Leave

Dec 17

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 164 and 214]

## 4437 MILITARY LEAVE

The Board of Education recognizes that military service rendered by any district employee in the defense of the country or in maintaining preparedness for conflict, foreign or domestic, is a service benefiting all citizens. A ~~Any~~ permanent or full-time **temporary** officer and/or employee of the district will be provided military leave and related benefits pursuant to the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), 38 U.S.C. Section 4301 et seq., P.L. 2001 Chapter 351 amending N.J.S.A. 38:23-1, N.J.S.A. 38A:1-1 and N.J.S.A. 38A:4-4., and any other applicable Federal and State laws.

A permanent or full-time temporary officer or employee of the school district who is a member of the organized militia of New Jersey (New Jersey National Guard, New Jersey Naval Militia Joint Command) shall be entitled, in addition to pay received, if any, **as a member of the organized militia**, to a leave of absence **from his or her respective duties** without loss of pay or time on all days **during in** which ~~he/she~~ **he or she shall be** is engaged in any period of State or Federal active duty-; **provided, however, that** ~~t~~The leave of absence for Federal active duty or active duty for training shall not exceed ninety work days in the aggregate in any calendar year. **Any leave of absence for such duty in excess of ninety work days shall be without pay, but without loss of time. Such leave shall be in addition to the regular vacation or other accrued leave provided to the officer or employee.** A ~~permanent or full-time temporary officer or employee who has served~~ **under such temporary appointment for less than one year in the district shall receive this leave without pay, but without loss of time. This paid leave shall be in addition to the regular vacation or other accrued leave provided to the officer or employee.** ~~Any leave of absence for such duty in excess of ninety work days shall be without pay, but without loss of time.~~

A permanent or full-time temporary officer or employee of the school district who is a member of the organized reserve of the Army of the United States, United States Naval Reserve, United States Air Force Reserve, or United States Marine Corps Reserve, or other organization affiliated therewith, including the National Guard of other States, shall be entitled, in addition to pay received, if any, **as a member of a reserve component of the Armed Forces of the United States**, to a leave of absence **from his or her respective duty** without loss of pay or time on





# POLICY GUIDE

## SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS

4437/page 2 of 2

### Military Leave

all work days he/she on which he or she shall be engaged in any period of **Federal** active duty, provided, **however, that** such leave of absence shall not exceed thirty work days in any calendar year. **Such leave shall be in addition to the regular vacation or other accrued leave provided to the officer or employee. Any leave of absence for such duty in excess of thirty work days shall be without pay, but without loss of time.** A permanent or full-time temporary officer or employee who has served **under such temporary appointment** for less than one year in the district shall receive this leave without pay, but without loss of time. ~~This paid leave shall be in addition to the regular vacation or other accrued leave provided to the officer or employee. Any leave of absence for such duty in excess of thirty workdays shall be without pay, but without loss of time.~~

Military leave with pay is not authorized for Inactive Duty Training (IDT) as defined in N.J.A.C. 5A:2-2.1.

The district will provide benefits and rights for staff on military leave as required by Federal and State laws.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:13H-2.1, in accordance with the provisions of Article VIII, Section II, paragraph 5 of the New Jersey Constitution, upon application by the district to the State Treasury and approval of the application by the Director of the Division of Budget and Accounting, reimbursement shall be made by the State of New Jersey for any costs incurred as a result of the provisions of P.L. 2001, Chapter 351.

N.J.S.A. 18A:6-33; 18A:29-11

N.J.S.A. 38:23-1 et seq.; 38A:1-1; 38A:4-4; 52:13H-2.1;

N.J.A.C. 5A:2-2.1

Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), 38 U.S.C. Section 4301 et seq.

Adopted:





# POLICY GUIDE

PROPERTY  
7425/page 1 of 2  
Lead Testing of Water in Schools  
Dec 17

[See POLICY ALERT No. 214]

## 7425 LEAD TESTING OF WATER IN SCHOOLS

The health, safety, and welfare of the children in the school district are of utmost importance to the Board of Education. The potential exposure to lead-contaminated drinking water poses serious health problems, particularly for children, as well as for teachers and school personnel, since the risk of lead contamination can come from pipe and plumbing fixtures in school facilities or on school grounds. The Board shall assure the availability of potable drinking water through sanitary means in school facilities or on school grounds. The Board of Education shall provide, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4, testing for lead in all district sources of drinking water.

The Board shall conduct lead sampling and analysis in all drinking water outlets to which a student or staff member has or may have access in each school facility, other facility, or temporary facility, as soon as practicable, but no later than July 13, 2017, unless the district qualifies for an exemption in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(d)(h)(i). This testing shall be conducted with a lead sampling plan in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(d)1, 2, and 3, and shall be in accordance with the Safe Drinking Water Act, N.J.S.A. 58:12A-1.

Within twenty-four hours after the Board or designee has completed a review of final laboratory results in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(e), the test results shall be made publicly available at the school facility and on the Board of Education's website. If any results exceed the permissible lead action level, the Board shall provide written notification to the parents of all students attending the facility, facility staff, and the New Jersey Department of Education. This notification shall include: a description of the measures taken by the Board or designee to immediately end the use of each drinking water outlet where the water quality exceeded the permissible lead action level; the measures taken to ensure that alternate drinking water has been made available to all students and staff members; and information regarding the health effects of lead in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(e)1 and 2. After the initial screening, the Board will conduct these lead screenings every six years and shall sample for lead after the replacement of any drinking water outlet or any other alteration to plumbing or service lines that may impact lead levels at the outlet, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(f)1 and 2.



# POLICY GUIDE

PROPERTY

7425/page 2 of 2

Lead Testing of Water in Schools

The Board shall submit to the New Jersey Department of Education by June 30 of each year a statement of assurance, that the school district completed lead testing in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4; that notifications were provided consistent with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4; and that alternative drinking water continues to be made available to all students and staff, if necessary, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(g).

The Board may apply for reimbursement for the costs of any water supply testing and analysis conducted, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(j).

N.J.S.A. 58:12A-1 et seq.

N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4

Adopted:



# HOPATCONG BOROUGH SCHOOLS 2017-2018 CALENDAR

September	4	Monday	Labor Day (District Closed)	
	5 & 6	Tuesday & Wednesday	Teacher In-Service	
	7	Thursday	Schools Re-Opens for Students	
	25	Monday	Early Dismissal Students/Teacher In-Service	17 Days
October	9	Monday	Columbus Day (School Closed for Students)	
			Teacher In-Service	21 Days
November	9	Thursday	NJEA Convention (Schools Closed)	
	10	Friday	Veterans Day Observed (Schools Closed)	
	22	Wednesday	Early Dismissal	
	23 & 24	Thursday & Friday	Thanksgiving Recess (District Closed)	18 Days
December	11	Monday	Early Dismissal Students/Teacher In-Service	
	22	Friday	Early Dismissal	
	25 - 29	Monday-Friday	Holiday Recess (District Closed)	16 Days
January 2018	1	Monday	New Year's Day (District Closed)	
	2	Tuesday	School Resumes	
	15	Monday	Martin Luther King Jr. Day (School Closed for Students)	
			Teacher In-Service	21 Days
February	12	Monday	Early Dismissal Students/Teacher In-Service	
	19 & 20	Monday & Tuesday	President's Day/Winter Recess (District Closed)	18 Days
March	12	Monday	Early Dismissal Students/Teacher In-Service	
	30	Friday	Spring Recess (District Closed)	21 Days
April	2 - 6	Monday - Friday	Spring Recess (Schools Closed)	16 Days
May	21	Monday	Early Dismissal Students/Teacher In-Service	
	28	Monday	Memorial Day (District Closed)	22 Days
June	20	Wednesday	Regular School Day	
	21	Thursday	Regular School Day	
	22	Friday	Regular School Day	
	25	Monday	Early Dismissal Students/Teacher In-Service	
	26	Tuesday	Early Dismissal/Last Day for Students	
	27	Wednesday	Early Dismissal/Last Day for Students	
	28	Thursday	Teacher In-Service (Schools Closed for Students)	19 Days

**180 Student Days  
185 Teacher Days**

Four days are included for emergency school closings. This schedule is subject to adjustment based upon the actual number of days used. Days may be added or subtracted depending on actual usage. Schools must be open 180 days. The final day of school is subject to change. Parents and district staff members are asked not to make any vacation plans, etc., through the end of the permissible school or contract year of June 30<sup>th</sup>. Several teacher in-service and early dismissal days have been added for Professional Development this year due to meeting extensive Department of Education teacher training requirements.

April 6, 2018